ANNUAL SUMMARY 1981 ISSUED SEPTEMBER 1982

ENTERS FOR DISEASE CONTROL Vater-related Disease Outbreaks

SURVEILLANCE



3. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES • Public Health Service

LAND QW 80 C397w 1981

Water-related disease outbreaks surveillance

PREFACE

This report summarizes information received from state and local health departments and the Environmental Protection Agency. The information is preliminary and is most useful to those persons in disease control activities. Anyone wishing to quote this report should contact the Water-Related Diseases Activity, Enteric Diseases Branch, for further interpretation.

Contributions to the report are most welcome. Please address them to:

Enteric Diseases Branch Division of Bacterial Diseases Center for Infectious Diseases Centers for Disease Control Atlanta, Georgia 30333

SUGGESTED CITATION Centers for Disease Control: Water-Related Disease Outbreaks Annual Summary 1981, Issued September 1982

Centers for Disease Control. William H. Foege, M.D., Director Center for Infectious Diseases Walter R. Dowdle, Ph.D., Director Charlotte C. Turner, Writer-Editor Division of Bacterial Diseases. Roger A. Feldman, M.D., Director Water-Related Dis./Molecular Epi. Activity M. L. Cohen, N.D. Jeffrey R. Harris, M.D.* James M. Hughes, M.D.T Charles E. Haley, M.D.1 Enteric Bacteriology Section. George K. Morris, Ph.D., Chief Joy G. Wells, M.S., Chief Epidemiology Laboratory Section Statistical Services Activity. Stanley M. Martin, M.S., Chief Robert A. Pollard, M.A. Division of Viral Diseases. Gary R. Noble, M.D., Acting Director Enteric and Neurotropic Viral Diseases Branch. Lawrence B. Schonberger, M.D., Chief Jonathan E. Kaplan, M.D. Division of Hepatitis and Viral Diseases. James E. Maynard, M.D., Director G. William Gary, Dr. P.H. Division of Parasitic Diseases. Robert L. Kaiser, M.D., Director Protozoal Diseases Branch. Dennis D. Juranek, D.V.M., Deputy Chief *Through July 1982. †Through June 1981 Through August 1981.

WATER-RELATED DISEASES SURVEILLANCE ANNUAL SUMMARY 1981

Table of Contents

. INTRODUCTION

- . WATERBORNE DISEASE OUTBREAKS, 1981
 - A. Definition of Terms
 - B. Sources of Data
 - C. Interpretation of Data
 - D. Analysis of Data
 - E. Comments
 - F. Investigation of Waterborne Outbreak (Standard Reporting Form)
 - G. Line Listing of Waterborne Outbreaks, 1981
 - H. Guidelines for Confirmation of Waterborne Disease Outbreaks
 - I. References
 - J. Listing of Waterborne Outbreak Articles, 1981, from the Morbidity and Mortality Weekly Report
- . OUTBREAKS RELATED TO RECREATIONAL WATER USE, 1981
 - A. Sources of Data
 - B. Comments
 - C. Line Listing of Disease Outbreaks Related to
 - Recreational Water Use, 1981
 - D. References
- . OUTBREAKS OF ACUTE GASTROINTESTINAL DISEASE ON OCEAN-GOING VESSELS
 - A. Sources of Data
 - B. Comments
 - C. References

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

We wish to thank Edwin C. Lippy, M.S., P.E., and Gunther F. Craun, M.S., P.E., Field Studies Division, Health Effects Research Laboratory, Environmental Protection Agency, for their invaluable assistance in collecting and reviewing waterborne disease outbreak data. We owe special thanks to Ms. Dot Anderson and Ms. Sara Waldrip for their secretarial assistance in preparing this report.

L. INTRODUCTION

Since 1971 the Centers for Disease Control (CDC) has tabulated foodborne and waterborne disease outbreak data separately and reported these data in annual reports. The Waterrelated Diseases Activity has set the following goals: 1) to determine the frequency of epidemics of water-related diseases in the United States, 2) to characterize the epidemiology of water-related diseases, 3) to disseminate information on prevention and control of water-related diseases to appropriate public health personnel, 4) to train federal, state, and local health department personnel in epidemiologic techniques for the investigation of weter-related disease outbreaks, and 5) to collaborate with local, state, other federal and international agencies in initiatives concerning prevention of water-related diseases. Also included in the responsibilities of the Water-related Diseases Activity is the investigation of outbreaks of acute gastrointestinal disease on ocean-going vessels.

11. WATERBORNE DISEASE OUTBREAKS, 1981

In 1981, 17 states reported 32 outbreaks of waterborne disease involving 4,430 cases to the Centers for Disease Control (CDC).

A. Definition of Terms

A waterborne disease outbreak is an incident in which 1) 2 or more persons experienced similar illness after consumption--or use--of water intended for drinking, and 2) epidemi-ologic evidence implicated the water as the source of illness. In addition, a single case of chemical poisoning constitutes an outbreak if laboratory studies indicated that the water was contaminated by the chemical. Only outbreaks associated with water intended for drinking are included.

Community public water systems (municipal systems) are public or investor-owned water systems that serve large or small communities, subdivisions or trailer parks of at least 15 service connections or 25 year-round residents. Noncommunity public water systems (semi-public water systems) are those in institutions, industries, camps, parks, hotels, or service stations that may be used by the general public. Individual systems (private water systems), generally wells and springs, are those used by single or several residences or by persons traveling outside populated areas. These definitions correspond to those in the Safe Drinking Water Act (PL 93-523) of 1974.

B. Sources of Data

State health departments report waterborne disease outbreaks to CDC on a standard reporting form (Section F). In addition, the Health Effects Research Laboratory of the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) contacts all state water-supply agencies annually to obtain information about waterborne disease outbreaks; information from both sources is included in this report. Representatives from CDC and EPA review and summarize outbreak data and also work together in the investigation and evaluation of waterborne disease outbreaks. In addition, upon request by state health departments, CDC and EPA offer epidemiologic assistance, provide consultation in the engineering and environmental aspects of water treatment, and, when indicated, collect large volume water samples for identification of viruses, parasites, and bacterial pathogens.

C. Interpretation of Data

The limitations of the data in this report must be appreciated to avoid misinterpretation The number of waterborne disease outbreaks reported to CDC and EPA clearly represents a fraction of the total number that occur. Since investigations were sometimes incomplete or conducted long after the outbreak, the waterborne hypothesis could not be proved in all instances; however, it was the most logical explanation in these outbreaks. The likelihood of an outbreak coming to the attention of health authorities varies considerably from I locale to another depending largely upon consumer awareness, physician interest, and disease surveillance activities of state and local health and environmental agencies. Large interstate outbreaks and outbreaks of serious illness are more likely to come to the attention of health authorities. The quality of investigation conducted by state or local health departments varies considerably according to the department's interest in waterborne diseases and its budgetary, investigative, and laboratory capabilities. This report should not be the basis for firm conclusions about the true incidence of waterborne disease outbreaks, and it should not be used to draw tirm conclusions about the relative incidence of waterborne diseases of various etfologies. The number of reported outbreaks of different etfologies may depend upon the interest of a particular health department or individual. For example, if an epidemiologist or microbiologist becomes interested in Giardia lamblia or Norwalk-like viruses, he is likely to confirm more outbreaks caused by these agents. Furthermore, a few outbreaks involving very large numbers of persons may vastly alter the relative proportion of cases attributed to various etiologic agents.

These data are helpful, however, in revealing the etiologies of reported waterborne disease outbreaks, the seasonality of outbreaks, and the deficiencies in water systems that most frequently result in outbreaks. As in the past, the pathogens responsible for many outbreaks in 1981 were not determined. It is hoped that more complete epidemiologic investigations, advances in laboratory techniques, and standardization of reporting of waterborne disease outbreaks will augment our knowledge of waterborne pathogens and the factors responsible for waterborne disease outbreaks.

D. Analysis of Data

In 1981, 32 waterborne disease outbreaks involving an estimated 4,430 persons were reported to CDC and EPA. This is a decline from 1979 and 1980 (Table 1).

	Community	Noncommunity	Private	TOTAL	TOTAL CASES
1971	5	10	4	19	5182
1972	10	18	2	30	1650
1973	5	16	3	24	1784
1974	11	10	5	26	8363
1975	6	16	2	24	10879
1976	9	23	3	35	5068
1977	12	19	3	34	3860
1978	10	18	4	32	11435
1979	23	14	4	41	9720
1980	23	22	5	50	20008
1981	14	16	2	32	4430
TOTAL (%)	128 (37)	182 (52)	37 (11)	347	82404

Table I Waterborne Disease Outbreaks, by Year and Type of System, United States, 1971-1981

Seventeen states reported at least 1 outbreak (Section G). Colorado reported more outbreaks than any other state (9/32 - 28%).

Table 2 shows the number of outbreaks and cases by etiology and type of water system. Of the 32 outbreaks, 14 (44%) were of unknown etiology and were designated as "acute gastrointestinal illness" (AGI). This category includes outbreaks characterized by upper or lower gastrointestinal symptoms for which no etiologic agent was identified. The etiology of the remaining 18 (56%) outbreaks was confirmed: <u>G. lamblia</u> (9), chemical (5), <u>Shigella</u> (1), <u>Campylobacter</u> (1), <u>Vibrio cholerae</u> OI (1), and rotavirus (1).

Table 2	Waterborne Disease Outbreaks by Etiology an	ď
	Type of Water System, 1981	

	Publ	lic Wat	er Systems		Privat	te		
	Communi	Lty	Noncomm	unity	Water Sys	stems	Total	
	Outbreaks	Cases	Outbreaks	Cases	Outbreaks	Cases	Outbreaks	Cases
AGI*	2	904	12	989	0	0	14	1893
Giardía	8	265	1	32	0	0	9	297
Chemical	2	93	1	31	2	4	5	128
Shigella	0	0	1	253	0	0	1	253
Campylobacter	1	81	0	0	0	0	1	81
V. cholerae Ol	0	0	1	17	0	0	1	17
Rotavirus	1	1761	0	0	0	0	1	1761
Total	14	3104	16	1322	2	4	32	4430

*Acute gastrointestinal illness of unknown etiology

Results of microbiologic tests of water samples were reported in 19 of 27 nonchemical outbreaks; evidence of contamination (presence of coliforms or pathogens) was found in 16 (84%). Water sample filtration for <u>Giardia</u> cysts was performed in 4 of the 9 <u>Giardia</u> outbreaks; cysts were found in all 4.

Most outbreaks involved noncommunity (50%) and community (44%) public water systems. Outbreaks attributed to water from community public water systems affected an average of 222 persons compared with 83 persons in noncommunity public water system outbreaks and 2 persons in outbreaks involving individual water systems (Table 2). Use of untreated or inadequately treated water was documented in 24 (75%) of the outbreaks (Table 3). Outbreaks occurred in every month of the year but most frequently in July and August (Table 4).

> Table 3 Waterborne Disease Outbreaks, by Type of System and Type of Deficiency, 1981

	Public Wa	ter Systems	Private		
	Community Outbreaks	Noncommunity Outbreaks	Water Systems Outbreaks	Total Outbreaks	
Untreated surface water	1	3	0	4	
Untreated ground water	1	7	1	9	
Treatment deficiencies	8	3	0	11	
Deficiencies in					
distribution system	1	1	0	2	
Miscellaneous	1	2	0	3	
Multiple deficiencies	2	0	1	3	
TOTAL	14	16	2	32	

Table 4 Waterborne Disease Outbreaks, by Month of Occurrence, United States, 1981

Month	Number of Outbreaks	Month	Number of Outbreaks
January	1	July	4
February	1	August	7
March	2	September	3
April	3	October	2
May	1	November	3
June	3	December	2
		Total:	32

3

Outbreaks in recreational areas continued to be a problem in 1981, accounting for 38% of all outbreaks. Of the 16 outbreaks associated with noncommunity public water systems, implicated water supplies involved camps and campgrounds (5), restaurants (4), motels (2), a conductinum (1), an oil rig (1), a school (1), a park (1), and a lodge (1).

In 11 of the 14 outbreaks of acute gastroenteritis of unknown etiology an incubation period was reported. In all but 2 instances the median incubation period was less than or equal to 48 hours, and the mean was approximately 46 hours.

Two interesting episodes that did not meet the definition of a waterborne outbreak, but may well have been examples of waterborne transmission, occurred in 1981 in the state of Washington. Both were single, unrelated cases of diarrhea in young children from whom Yersinia enterocolitica was isolated. In both cases, Y. enterocolitica of the same biotype was isolated from the child's water supply, but in neither case were other family members ill or infected?

E. Concents

The decrease in the number of outbreaks reported in 1981 may well be due to less complete reporting rather than an actual decrease. The waterborne disease surveillance system is, for the most part, a passive surveillance one. There is evidence to suggest that this report contains only a small and variable fraction of the outbreaks and cases that occur each year in the United States. Supporting this is the fact that 4 states reported a full 59% of all the outbreaks in 1981. Three of these, Colorado, Vermont, and Washington, received federal thats for surveillance in 1981 through contracts with EPA, and the fourth, Pennsylvania, has an extremely well-developed suveillance system. Colorado received these federal funds for solveillance in both 1980 and 1981, and in those years reported an average of 7 outbreaks per year, in contrast with its previous average, reported in 1971-1979, of 1.9 outbreaks per year.

Water systems used on a seasonal basis such as those in camps, parks, and resorts have an abnormal demand placed upon them by large numbers of visitors during specific periods of the year and in some instances cannot meet such demands. For the most part these are noncommunity systems. Such water supply systems, especially those at campgrounds and parks, west be reevaluated and monitored, and corrections made to ensure the continued provision of same water during periods of increased demand. The large outbreaks that occurred in 1975 in Crater Lake National Park (1) and Yellowstone National Park (2) underscore the problems retated to water supplies in recreational areas that can occur.

In 1981, the number of outbreaks related to noncommunity systems only slightly exceeded the number related to community systems. EPA estimates, however, that there are 20 million noncommunity, 180 million community, and 30 million individual water system users in the Entred States, so that the rate of illness was far greater among noncommunity system users that among community system users. Two pathogens followed recent trends in 1981. <u>Giardia</u> lanalia was the most frequently identified pathogen for the fourth consecutive year. It caused 28% of the outbreaks, the highest percentage since the present surveillance system began in 1971. <u>Campylobacter jejuni</u>, first identified as the cause of a waterborne outbreak in 1978 (3), caused 1 outbreak in 1981. This outbreak occurred after a water main broke and the water presumably became contaminated in a community in Illinois. <u>C. jejuni</u> was isolated from the stools of several ill persons, but water samples were not collected until late in the outbreak, and the only one which grew <u>Campylobacter</u> was taken 6 weeks after the outbreak i can a house which had been unoccupied during and after the outbreak. This emphasizes the importance of "stored" water samples, such as ice, or water from fire hydrants or unused spigots, in the late investigation of waterborne outbreaks.

Two pathogens were identified as causes of U.S. waterborne outbreaks in this country for the first time in 1981, and there was I notable absence. V. cholerae Ol caused 17 cases of severe diarrhea on an oil rig in Texas. In this outbreak, the index patient probably became ill after consumption of seafood. Sewage which included his stool apparently then contaminated the potable water supply of the rig via a cross-connection. This was the largest cholera outbreak in the United States in the 20th century. Rotavirus caused an outbreak of 1761 cases in a Colorado resort town. For the first time since 1977, there were no outbreaks due to the Norwalk agent reported in 1981. Reagents for diagnosis of this organism are in short supply, and this probably accounted for the lack of reported outbreaks in 1981.

Five chemical outbreaks were recorded in 1981 and were caused by 4 chemicals: lead (2), copper (1), fluoride (1), and nitrate (1). Three of these outbreaks (2 lead, 1 copper) were

very similar in that contamination occurred after excessively corrosive water dissolved metal trom pipes. The contamination was eliminated primarily by decreasing the corrosivity of the water, but replacement of the lead-containing pipes was recommended as well.

In addition to 32 outbreaks related to drinking water systems, 3 outbreaks, involving 20 cases, were reported that resulted from contaminated water not meant for drinking (Table 5). Two resulted from drinking untreated surface water. One, caused by <u>Giardia</u>, occurred in a proup of hikers in a back-country area. The other, whose etiology was undetermined, occurred in a road work crew who drank untreated water from a creek. Water in natural springs and creeks should be considered nonpotable and should be disinfected before it is consumed.

The third of these outbreaks occurred after workmen in a factory drank from an unmarked spigot used for sampling partially-treated sewage effluent. All who drank the water became HI within 48 hours. They initially had a short diarrheal illness, but no bacterial pathogen could be identified in their stools. Six of 7, however, developed chronic diarrhea, and all 4 whose stools were examined had <u>Giardia</u>. As in the past (4), this probably represented an outbreak caused by multiple pathogens after an episode of "sewage poisoning."

Table	5	Waterborne	Disease	Outbreaks	Not	Related	to	Potable	Water	Systems,
	Un	ited States,	1981							

State	Month	Etiology	Cases	Water Source	Location
Colo Fla	Oct Oct	<u>Giardia</u> AGI, <u>Giardia</u>	7 7	Stream Sewage Creek	Wilderness Factory Town
Penn	July	AGI	6	Creek	TOWI

Total 20

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICE CENTERS FOR DISEASE CONTROL CENTER FOR INFECTIOUS DISEASES ATLANTA, GEORGIA 30333

F. INVESTIGATION OF A WATERBORNE OUTBREAK

Form Approved OMB No.n920-0004

1. Where did the outbreak occur?		2. Date of outbreak: (Date of onset of 1st case)
3. Indicate actual (a) or estimated	City or Town County 4. History of exposed persons:	5. Incubation period (hours):
(e) numbers: Persons exposed(9-11)	No histories obtained	
Persons ill (12-14) Hospitalized (15-16) Fatal cases (17)	Nausea (24-20) Diarrhea (33-35) Vomiting (27-29) Fever (36-38)	
	Cramps (30/32) Other, specify (39)	Median (55-57)

7. Epidemiologic data (e.g., attack rates (number ill/number exposed) for persons who did or did not eat or drink specific food items or water, attack rate by quantity of water consumed, anecdotal information) * (58)

	NU DR	MBER OF	PERSONS WHO	ATE OR R WATER	NUMBER WHO DID NOT EAT OR DRINK SPECIFIED FOOD OR WATER			
ITEMS SERVED	1LL	NOT ILL	TOTAL	PERCENT ILL	1LL	NOT ILL	TOTAL	PERCENT
			·		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			
······							, <u></u>	
			l		L			

8. Vehicle responsible (item incriminated by epidemiologic evidence): (59-60)

9. Water supply characteristics	(A) Type of wat		niv * *		
	🗋 Municipa	l or ce	mmun	ity sup	poly (Name)
	🗋 Individua	al hous	sehold	supply	
	C Semi-put	olic wa	iter sup	ply	
	🗆 Instit	ution.	schooi	churc	h
	C Camp	, recre	eationa	area	
	Bottled				
(B) Water source (check all app	blicable):				(C) Treatment provided (circle treatment of each source checked in 8):
🗔 Well	а	b	с	đ	a no treatment
C Spring	в	b	С	d	b disinfection only
Lake, pond	a	b	с	d	c purification plant coagulation, settling, filtration,
River, stream	ð	ь	c	d	disinfection (circle those applicable)
					d other
10. Point where contamination of	curred: (66)				
Raw water source	Treatment plant			Distri	bution system
the state of the state of states are i	supplies are public or in ndividual-type water sup ons include schools, cam	Diles se	owned erving a	group	es. Individual water supplies are wells or springs used by single residences. I of residences or locations where the general public is likely to have access body and before the second
CDC 52 12 (1 4 461)					

CDC.	12.12	ų.,	-
REV.	7-81		

This report is authorized by law (Public Health Service Act, 42 USC 241). While your response is voluntary, your cooperation is necessary for the understanding and control of the disease.

11. Water specimens examined: (67)

(Specify by "X" whether water examined wes original (drunk at time of outbreak) or check-up (collected before or after outbreak occurred)

						FI	NDINGS	BACTERIOLOGIC TECHNIQUE
ITEM		ORIG	GINAL CHECK UP		DATE	Quantitative	Qualitative	(e.g., fermentation tube, membrane filter)
Examples	Tap wa	ter X			6/12/74	10 fecal coliforn per 100 ml.	ns	
	Raw wa	iter		x	6/2/74	23 total coliforr per 100 ml.	ns	
					· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			
12. Treatmen Example:		residual — Or ef ch Ti	ne samp fluent o slorine hree sam	to determine ple from treate on 6/11/74 - mples from dia 74 - no reside	ment plant trace of free stribution syst			
13. Speciment	from patient		-			14. Unusual occ	urrence of events:	
SPEC	IMEN	NO. PERSONS	<u> </u>	FINDIN	IGS		de di additi da cana a sa di sa da	1/74; pit contaminated with tion. Turbid water reported
Example:	Stool	11	8 Sal	monella typh	;		consumers 6/12/74.	
				ptive				
			1					
<u> </u>								
			 					
		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	1-	·				
15. Factors co	mtributing to	outbreak (ch	eck all	applicable):				
C) Overfle	ow of sewage			uption of disi				ion, location of well/spring
	e of sewage	_		quate disinfec			Use of water not in	COLUMN TO THE PROPERTY OF
Contract of the second s	ng, heavy rain			iencies in othe	r treatment p		Contamination of s	torage facility bugh creviced limestone or fissured roc
2 C	untreated wa			-connection siphonage				Sugn crevices minestone of rissored roc
	supplementar nadequately 1				nains during c	onstruction or repair		
16. Etiology:					and damig a			(71)
						Suspected		1
-						Confirmed		
Other								3
7. Remarks: leading to	Briefly descrit conteminatio	be aspects of n of water; ep	the inv	estigation not curve; contro	covered above of measures im	ə, such as unusual agə plementəd; etc. (Atta	or sex distribution; un ock additional page if no	usuai circumstances scessary)
Name of repor	ting agency:	(72)						
nvestigating (Mficial:			_		Date of	investigation:	
Note: Ep	idemic and La	aboratory ass	stance	for the invest Atlanta, Georg	igation of a wi	aterborne outbreak is	available upon request	by the State Health Department
To impro	we national su	irveillance, pl	ease sei	nd a copy of t	his report to:		Control ses Branch, Bacterial D fectious Diseases	iseases Division
						Atlanta, Georgia 30	333	
Submitte	d copies shou	Id include as	much i	nformation as	possible, but	trie completion of ev	ery item is not required	d .

G. Line Listing of Waterborne Outbreaks, United States, 1981

State	Month	Etiology*	Cases	Type of System1	Deficiency	Location of Outbreak	Source
Ariz	June	AG1	326	С	2	subdivision	wells
Calit	April	AGI	61	NC	2	restaurant	spring
Colo	March	Rotavirus	1761	С	3	town	stream
Colo	June	Giardia	8	С	3	town	creek
Colo	July	Giardia	30+	С	3	town	creek
Colo	Aug	Giardia	110	С	3	town	creek
Colo	Aug	AGI	578	С	3	town	creek
Colo	Sept	Giardia	32	NC	3	camp	creek
Colo	Nov	Giardia	38	С	3	ski area	creek
Colo	Dec	Giardia	14	С	3	town	spring
Colo	Dec	Glardia	18	С	3	town	stream
Conn	Aug	AG1	80	NC	2	park	well
I11	Sept	Campylobacter	81	С	4	subdivisions	weil
Iowa	June	AGI	14	NC	5	camp	wells
Kan	Aug	AGI	100	NC	1	restaurant	well
Maine	Oct	Fluoride	31	NC	5	school	well
Md	Aug	AGI	12	NC	2	condominium	well
NY	Aust	AGI	400	NC	2	camp	well
Ore	Feb	AGI	40	NC	3	lodge	spring
Penn	Jan	Lead	3	I	3,4	home	well
Penn	April	AGI	9	NC	2	motel	well
Penn	April	AGI	35	NC	2	motel	well
Penn	May	AGI	51	NC	2	restaurant	well
Penn	July	AGI	97	NC	1	camp	spring
Penn	July	AGI	30	NC	3	restaurant	well
Penn	Nov	Lead	84	C	3,4	town	river
Penn	Nov	Copper	9	č	3,4	school	reservoir
SD	Mar	Nitrate	1	I	2	farm	well
Tex	Aug	V. cholerae 01		NC	4	oil rig	bayou
Vt	Oct	Giardia	22	C	1	town	spring
Wash	July	Shigella	253	NC	1	campground	stream
Wisc	Sept	Giardía	25	C	5	motel	well
HI SC	Jept	Glatula	4.5	U	5	moter	Welt

* (AGI) acute gastrointestinal illness of unknown etiology

(() community (municipal); (NC) non-community (semi-public); (I) individual
\$(1) untreated surface water (2) untreated ground water (3) treatment deficiencies
 (4) distribution system deficiencies (5) miscellaneous

H. Guidelines for Confirmation of Waterborne Disease Outbreaks

 b) Gastrointestinal syndrome: majority of cases with diarrhea logically incriminated water and stool of ill persons but not in stools of controls. -OR- b) Isolation of organisms of the same serotype which have been shown to be enterotoxigenic or invasive by special labo- 		C I I II	es for confirmation of waterbor	ne p	isease Outbreaks
Saimonella a) Incubation period 6-48 hrs a) Isolation of Saimonella organisms of the same serotype which have been shown to be enterotoxigenic or funvasive by special laboratory techniques from stools of most ill persons. Saimonella a) Incubation period 6-48 hrs a) Isolation of Saimonella organism from epidemiologically incriminated water. -OR- b) Gastrointestinal syndrome: majority of cases with diarrhea a) Isolation of Saimonella organism from epidemiologically implicated water. -OR- b) Gastrointestinal syndrome: majority of patients diarrhea a) Incubation period 12-48 hrs a) Isolation of Shigella organism from epidemiologi- cally implicated water. -OR- b) Gastrointestinal syndrome: majority of patients diarrhea a) Incubation period usually Z-5 days a) Isolation of Campylobacter organisms from sitools of fill persons. campylobacter jejuni a) Incubation period 3-7 days a) Isolation of Yersinia organ- ises from stools of fill persons. b) Gastrointestinal syndrome: majority of patients diarrhea a) Incubation period 3-7 days a) Isolation of Yersinia organ- ises from stools of fill persons. campylobacter majority of patients diarrhea a) Incubation period 3-7 days a) Isolation of Yersinia organ- ises from stools of fill persons. b) Gastrointestinal syndrome: majority of patients diarrhea a) Isolation of Yersinia organ- ises from stools of fill persons. core b) Gastrointestinal syndrome: majority of patients with diarrhea or cramps b)	tiologic Agent	<u>C1</u>	inical Syndrome	Ep	idemiologic Criteria
majority of cases with diarrheasame serotype which have beer shown to be enterotoxigenic of most ill persons Saimonellaa) Incubation period 6-48 hrsa) Isolation of Salmonella organ ism from epidemiologically implicated water. -QR-b) Gastrointestinal syndrome: majority of patients diarrheaa) Incubation period 12-48 hrsa) Isolation of Shigella organism from epidemiologic- cally implicated water. -QR-b) Gastrointestinal syndrome: majority of patients diarrheaa) Incubation period usually 2-5 daysa) Isolation of Shigella organisms from epidemiologi- cally implicated water. -QR-b) Gastrointestinal syndrome: majority of patients diarrheaa) Isolation of Campylobacter organisms from epidemiologi- cally implicated water. -QR-b) Gastrointestinal syndrome: majority of patients diarrheaa) Isolation of Campylobacter organisms from epidemiologi- cally implicated water. -QR-b) Gastrointestinal syndrome: majority of patients diarrheaa) Isolation of Yersinia organ- isms from stools of fill persons.campylobacter imajority of patients diarrheaa) Isolation of Yersinia organ- isms from stools of fill persons.b) Gastrointestinal syndrome: majority of patients with diarrhea or crampsa) Isolation of Yersinia organ- isms from stools of fill persons.collicical and laboratory data appraised in individualb) Isolation of Yersinia organ- isma from stools of fill persons.	• Escherichia coli			a)	of same serotype in epidemio- logically incriminated water and stool of ill persons but not in stools of controls.
 ism from epidemiologically implicated water. -OR b) Gastrointestinal syndrome: majority of cases with diarrhea a) Incubation period 12-48 hrs b) Isolation of Shigella organism from epidemiologi- cally implicated water. -OR b) Gastrointestinal syndrome: majority of patients diarrhea b) Isolation of Shigella organism from epidemiologi- cally implicated water. -OR b) Gastrointestinal syndrome: majority of patients diarrhea a) Incubation period usually jejuni 2-5 days a) Isolation of Campylobacter majority of patients diarrhea a) Incubation period 3-7 days a) Isolation of Yersinia organ- isms from epidemiologically implicated water. -OR b) Gastrointestinal syndrome: majority of patients diarrhea a) Incubation period 3-7 days a) Isolation of Yersinia organ- isms from epidemiologically implicated water. -OR b) Gastrointestinal syndrome: majority of patients with diarrhea or cramps -OR c) Significant rise in bacterial agglutinating antibodies in acute and early convalescent sera. Others Clinical and laboratory data appraised in individual a) Individual b) Isolation of Yersinia organiserial serial seri		b)	majority of cases with	Ъ)	same serotype which have been shown to be enterotoxigenic or invasive by special labo- ratory techniques from stools
majority of cases with diarrheaorganism from stools or tis- sues of ill persons Shigellaa) Incubation period 12-48 hrsa) Isolation of Shigella organism from epidemiologi- cally implicated water. -OR-b) Gastrointestinal syndrome: majority of patients diarrheaa) Isolation of <u>Shigella</u> organ- ism from stools of ill persons.campylobacter jejunia) Incubation period usually 2-5 daysa) Isolation of <u>Campylobacter</u> organisms from stools of ill persons.b) Gastrointestinal syndrome: majority of patients diarrheaa) Isolation of <u>Campylobacter</u> organisms from stools of ill persons.b) Gastrointestinal syndrome: majority of patients enterocoliticaa) Incubation period 3-7 daysc) Gastrointestinal syndrome: majority of patients with diarrheaa) Isolation of <u>Versinia</u> organ- isms from stools of ill persons.b) Gastrointestinal syndrome: majority of patients with diarrhea or crampsb) Isolation of <u>Versinia</u> organ- isms from stools of ill persons.c) OthersClinical and laboratory data appraised in individualc)	. Salmonella	a)	Incubation period 6-48 hrs	a)	ism from epidemiologically implicated water.
OthersCampylobacter jejunia)Incubation period usually 2-5 daysb)Isolation of Campylobacter organisms from stools of 11 persons.0.a)Incubation period usually 2-5 daysa)Isolation of Campylobacter organisms from epidemiologi- cally implicated water. -OR-b)Gastrointestinal syndrome: majority of patients diarrheaa)Isolation of Campylobacter organisms from epidemiologi- cally implicated water. -OR-b)Gastrointestinal syndrome: majority of patients diarrheaa)Isolation of Yersinia organ- isms from stools of 111 persons.1Yersinia diarrheaa)Incubation period 3-7 days majority of patients with diarrhea or crampsa)Isolation of Yersinia organ- isms from stools of 111 persons.b)Gastrointestinal syndrome: majority of patients with diarrhea or crampsb)Isolation of Yersinia organ- isms from stools of 111 persons.c)Significant rise in bacterial agglutinating antibodies in 		b)	majority of cases with	Ъ)	organism from stools or tis-
majority of patients diarrheaism from stools of 11 persons Campylobacter jejunia) Incubation period usually 2-5 daysa) Isolation of Campylobacter organisms from epidemiologi- cally implicated water. -OR-b) Gastrointestinal syndrome: majority of patients diarrheaa) Incubation period 3-7 daysa) Isolation of Yersinia organ- isms from stools of 11 persons.Yersinia enterocoliticaa) Incubation period 3-7 daysa) Isolation of Yersinia organ- isms from stools of 11 persons.b) Gastrointestinal syndrome: majority of patients with diarrhea or crampsa) Isolation of Yersinia organ- isms from stools of 11 persons.b) Gastrointestinal syndrome: majority of patients with diarrhea or cramps-OR- () Significant rise in bacterial agglutinating antibodies in acute and early convalescent sera.OthersClinical and laboratory data appraised in individual	• Shigella	a)	Incubation period 12-48 hrs	a)	organism from epidemiologi- cally implicated water.
jejuni2-5 daysorganisms from epidemiologi- cally implicated water. -OR-b) Gastrointestinal syndrome: majority of patients 		b)	majority of patients	Ъ)	ism from stools of ill
majority of patients diarrheaorganisms from stools of fil persons.Yersinia enterocoliticaa) Incubation period 3-7 daysa) Isolation of Yersinia organ- isms from epidemiologically implicated water. -OR-b) Gastrointestinal syndrome: majority of patients with diarrhea or crampsb) Isolation of Yersinia organ- isms from stools of fill persons.c) ChersClinical and laboratory data appraised in individual-OR- c) Significant rise in bacterial agglutinating antibodies in acute and early convalescent sera.		a)		a)	organisms from epidemiologi- cally implicated water.
enterocoliticaisms from epidemiologically implicated water. -OR-b) Gastrointestinal syndrome: majority of patients with 		b)	majority of patients	Ъ)	Isolation of Campylobacter organisms from stools of ill
majority of patients with diarrhea or cramps -OR- c) Significant rise in bacterial agglutinating antibodies in acute and early convalescent sera. Others Clinical and laboratory data appraised in individual		a)	Incubation period 3-7 days	a)	isms from epidemiologically implicated water.
agglutinating antibodies in acute and early convalescent sera. Others Clinical and laboratory data appraised in individual		b)	majority of patients with	b)	isms from stools of ill persons.
appraised in individual				c)	Significant rise in bacterial agglutinating antibodies in acute and early convalescent
	Others	app	raised in individual		

Etiologic Agent	Clinical Syndrome	Epidemiologic Criteria		
CHEMICAL				
 Heavy metals Antimony Codmium 	a) Incubation period 5 min. to 8 hours (usually <1 hour)	Demonstration of high concentra- tion of metallic ion in epidemio- logically incriminated water.		
Cadmium Copper Iron Tin Zinc, etc.	 b) Clinical syndrome compatible with heavy metal poisoning usually gastrointestinal syndrome and often metallic taste 			
2. Fluoride	a) Incubation period usually <1 hr	Demonstration of high concentra- tion of fluoride ion in epidemio- logically incriminated water.		
	b) Gastrointestinal illness usually nausea, vomiting, and abdominal pain	logically incliminated water.		
3. Other chemicals	Clinical and laboratory data ap- praised in individual circumstances			
PARASITIC				
l. <u>Giardia lamblia</u>	a) Incubation period 1-4 weeks	a) Demonstration of <u>Giardia</u> cysts in epidemiologically incriminated water. -OR-		
	 b) Gastrointestinal syndrome: chronic diarrhea, cramps, fatigue and weight loss 	b) Demonstration of <u>Giardia</u> trophs or cysts in stools or duodenal aspirates of ill persons.		
2. <u>Entameba</u> <u>histolytica</u>	a) Incubation period: usually 2-4 weeks	a) Demonstration of Entamoeba histolytica cysts in epi- demiologically incriminated water.		
	 b) Variable: gastrointestinal syndrome from acute ful- minating dysentery with fever, chills, and bloody stools to mild abdominal discomfort with diarrhea 	-OR- b) Demonstration of <u>Entamoeba</u> <u>histolytica</u> trophs or cysts in stools of affected persons.		
3. Others	Clinical and laboratory data ap- praised in individual circum- stances			
VIRAL				
l. Hepatitis A	a) Incubation period 14-28 days	Liver function tests compatible		
	 b) Clinical syndrome compatible with hepatitis—usually including jaundice, GI symptoms, dark urine 	with hepatitis in affected persons who consumed the epide- miologically incriminated water.		

Etiologic Agent

 Norwalk and Norwalk-like agents

3. Rotavirus

Enterovirus

4.

Clinical Syndrome

- a) Incubation period 24-48 hours (range 4-77 hours)
- b) Gastrointestinal syndrome: vomiting, watery diarrhea, abdominal cramps, and often headache
- a) Incubation period 24-72 hours
- b) Gastrointestinal syndrome: vomiting, watery diarrhea, abdominal cramps, often with significant dehydration
- a) Incubation period: 5-10 days (range 3-15 days)
 - b) Syndrome: Enteroviral gastroenteritis is uncommon, although it does occur.
 Enteroviral infection usually includes with other syndromes; poliomyelitis, aseptic meningitis, herpangina, etc.
- 5. Others Clinical and laboratory evidence appraised in individual circumstances

Epidemiologic Criteria

- a) Significant rise in antiviral antibody in paired sera ~OR-
- b) Demonstration of virus particles in stools of ill persons by immune electron microscopy.
- a) Demonstration of virus in the stools of ill persons by ELISA or electron microscopy. -OR-
- b) Significant rise in antiviral antibody in paired sera.
- a) Isolation of virus from ill persons.
 -OR-
- b) Isolation of virus from epidemiologically implicated water.

I. References

1. Rosenberg ML, Koplan, JP, Wachsmuth IK, et al. Epidemic diarrhea at Crater Lake from enterotoxigenic Escherichia coli. Ann Intern Med 1977;86:714-8.

2. Center for Disease Control. Gastroenteritis--Yellowstone National Park, Wyoming. Morbidity and Mortality Weekly Rep 1977;26:283.

3. Vogt RL, Sours HE, Barrett T, Feldman RA, Dickinson RJ, Witherell L. <u>Campylobacter</u> enteritis associated with contaminated water. Ann Intern Med 1982;96:292-6.

4. Center for Disease Control. Shigellosis and Salmonellosis--Morocco. Morbidity and Mortality Weekly Rep 1963;12:438-9.

J. Listing of Waterborne Outbreak Articles, 1981, from the Morbidity and Mortality Weekly Report

Centers for Disease Control. Cholera on a gulf coast oil rig - Texas. Morbidity and Mortality Weekly Rep 1981;30:589-92.

111. DISEASE OUTBREAKS RELATED TO RECREATIONAL WATER USE, 1981

A. Sources of Data

As with disease outbreaks associated with drinking water, the sources of data for outbreaks associated with recreational water use are the state epidemiologists and their staffs. However, reporting of these disease outbreaks is not systematic; therefore, the outbreaks reported here also represent a small fraction of the total number that occur. The likelihood of an outbreak coming to the attention of health authorities varies considerably trom 1 locale to another, depending largely upon consumer awareness and physician interest. We have included in this section infections or intoxications related to recreational water, but have excluded wound infections caused by water-related organisms.

B. <u>Comments</u> Eight outbreaks related to recreational use of water were reported to CDC in 1981

(Section C); 7 were outbreaks of dermatitis, and 1 was an outbreak of Pontiac fever. Six of the 7 dermatitis outbreaks were caused by <u>Pseudomonas aeruginosa</u>. This is the largest number of confirmed <u>Pseudomonas</u> dermatitis outbreaks reported to CDC since routine tabulation of outbreaks related to recreational water use began in 1978. The first such outbreak was reported in 1975 (5). This outbreak and the majority of outbreaks since have been related to whirlpool or hot tub use, although outbreaks related to swimming pool use have been reported (6). CDC recently published suggested health and safety guidelines for public spas and hot tubs (7). There are no known reports of outbreaks occurring at facilities in which the pool water has been continuously maintained at pH 7.2-7.8 with free residual chlorine levels of at least 1.0 mg/L (8). The seventh dermatitis outbreak was caused by algal toxins produced by the blue-green alga, <u>Microcoleus Lyngbyaceus</u>. Affected persons were exposed to these toxins while swimming in the sea on the windward side of Oahu, Hawaii. Similar outbreaks occurring sporadically during the summer months in Hawaii have been recorded since 1958 (9), but have not previously been reported to CDC.

The Pontiac fever outbreak, caused by <u>Legionella</u>, is the first such outbreak to be associated with whirlpool use. The outbreak occurred in Vermont at a spa. <u>Legionella</u> was isolated trom the whirlpool water.

C. Line Listing of Disease Outbreaks Related to Recreational Water Use, 1981

State	Month	Disease	Organism	Cases	Nature of Water
Colo	April	Dermatitis	Pseudomonas	10	hot tub
Ga	March	Dermatitis	Pseudomonas	110	whirlpool
Ha	Aug	Dermatitis	Microcoleus	14	sea
			lyngbyaceus		
Mass	March	Dermatitis	Pseudomonas	39	whirlpool
Minn	Мау	Dermatitis	Pseudomonas	1	whirlpool
Tenn	Sept	Dermatitis	Pseudomonas	2	whirlpool
Vt	March	Pontiac Fever	Legionella	34	whirlpool
Wash	Jan	Dermatitis	Pseudomonas	460	whirlpool

D. References

5. McCausland WJ, Cox PJ. <u>Pseudomonas</u> infection traced to motel whirlpool. J Environ Health 1975;37:455-9.

6. Hopkins RS, Abbott DO, Wallace LE. Follicular dermatitis outbreak caused by <u>Pseudomonas aeruginosa</u> associated with a motel's indoor swimming pool. Pub Health Rep 1981;96:246-9.

7. Centers for Disease Control. Suggested health and safety guidelines for public spas and hot tubs. Atlanta: Centers for Disease Control, 1981 (HHS publication no. 99-960).

8. Centers for Disease Control. Outbreak of <u>Pseudomonas aeruginosa</u> serotype 0:9 associated with a whirlpool. Morbidity and Mortality Weekly Rep 1981;30:329-31.

9. Graner FH. Dermatitis escharotica caused by a marine alga. Hawaii Med J 1959;19:32-4.

IV. OUTBREAKS OF ACUTE GASTROINTESTINAL DISEASE ON OCEAN-GOING VESSELS

A. Sources of Data

After shipboard outbreaks of typhoid fever (10), viral gastroenteritis, and shigellosis (11) occurred in 1971-1973, a review of ships' medical logs revealed an incidence of gastrointestinal illness on passenger cruise ships of 1% or less on 92% of cruises and 5% or greater on 2% of cruises (12). Shortly thereafter, the Bacterial Diseases Division and Quarantine Division, Bureau of Epidemiology, Center for Disease Control, established a surveillance system for shipboard gastrointestinal illness which required vessel masters to report all persons with diarrheal illness seen by the ship's physician as a part of his request for radio pratique (permission to enter a port). These reports are made by radio 4

to 24 hours before arrival in port and are logged by quarantine officers for forwarding to $\infty \otimes \infty$ monthly. In the event that 3% or more passengers on any 1 cruise visit the ship's position with gastrointestinal illness, a quarantine officer will board and inspect the ship and then telephone a report to the Centers for Disease Control. Based on his report, the interic Diseases Branch, Division of Bacterial Diseases, Center for Infectious Diseases, may perform an in-depth investigation of the outbreak.

The Quarantine Division, Center for Prevention Services, performs a vessel sanitation inspection on each cruise ship semiannually or more frequently if indicated by poor sanitary rutings. Since the sanitation rating represents the results of an inspection carried out dockside on a given day, this rating may not reflect the sanitary conditions at sea. In 1978, however, results of the ships' reports of diarrheal illness since 1975 were compared with the vessel sanitation inspection reports for the same period. Outbreaks of diarrheal illness were significantly less frequent on vessels with sanitation scores that met the which lealth Service standards than on vessels which did not (13).

: Comments

In 1981, CDC personnel investigated 5 outbreaks of diarrheal illness on cruise ships calling at U. S. ports. One ship was involved in 2 outbreaks. The first resulted after a Benican luncheon on shore. Several pathogens were isolated from stools of the 98 ill persongers, including non-Ol <u>Vibrio cholerae</u>, <u>V. parahemolyticus</u>, enterotoxigenic <u>Escherichia</u> coli, and <u>Salmonella havana</u>. Several of the food items consumed at the luncheon were despociated with illness, suggesting generalized contamination of the food. The second withreak on this ship involved 135 cases and was probably of non-bacterial etiology. The tode of transmission was not determined. Three other ships had l outbreak each. The first was a foodborne outbreak with 440 cases caused by <u>V. parahemolyticus</u>. Illness was associated with a seafood salad. The second was also a foodborne outbreak, with 47 cases and was caused by enteroinvasive <u>E. coli</u>. This was only the second reported foodborne outbreak caused by enteroinvasive <u>E. coli</u> in the U.S. (14,15). The third outbreak involved 224 cases and was of uon-bacterial etiology. Person-to-person transmission was suspected or confirmed.

C. References

10. Davies JW, Cox KC, Simon WR, et al. Typhoid at sea: Epidemic aboard an ocean Liner. Canad Med Assoc J 1972;106:877-83.

11. Merson MH, Tenney JH, Meyers JD, et al. Shigellosis at sea: An outbreak aboard a passenger cruise ship. Am J Epidemiol 1975;101:165-75.

12. Merson MH, Hughes JM, Wood BT, Yashuk JC, Wells JG. Gastrointestinal illness on passenger cruise ships. JAMA 1975;231:723-7.

13. Dannenberg AL, Yashuk JC, Feldman RA. Gastrointestinal illness on passenger cruise ships, 1975-1978. Am J Pub Hlth 1982;72:484-8.

14. Marier R, Wells JG, Swanson RC, Callahan W, Mehlman IJ. An outbreak of

enteropathogenic Escherichia coli foodborne disease traced to imported French cheese. Lancet 19/3;2:1376-8.

15. Tulloch EF, Ryan KJ, Formal SB, Franklin FA. Invasive enteropathic Escherichia coli dysentery. Ann Int Med 1973;79:13-7.

LAND QW 80 C397w 1981

Water-related disease outbreaks surveillance

9/13/82

STATE AND TERRITORIAL EPIDEMIOLOGISTS AND STATE LABORATORY DIRECTORS

The State and Territorial Epidemiologists are the key to all disease surveillance activities, and the contributions to this report are gratefully acknowledged. In addition, valuable contributions are may by State Laboratory Directors.

State Alabama Alaska Arizona Arkansas California Colorado Connecticut Delaware District of Columbia Florida Georgia Guan Hawaii Idaho Illinois Indiana Iowa Kansas Kentucky Louisiana Maine Maryland Massachusetts Michigan Micronesia** Minnesota Mississippi Missouri Montana Nebraska Nevada New Hampshire New Jersey New Mexico New York State New York City North Carolina North Dakota Northern Mariana Islands** Ohio Oklahoma Oregon Palau** Pennsylvania Puerto Rico Rhode Island South Carolina South Dakota Tennessee Texas litch Vermont Virginia Virgin Islands Washington West Virginia Wisconsin Wyoming

State Epidemiologist Wallace E. Birch, DVM John P. Middaugh, MD Jeffrey J. Sacks, M.D., Acting John Paul Lofgren, MD James Chin, MD Richard S. Hopkins, MD Vernon D. Loverde, MD Donald R. Cowan, DDS, MS Martin E. Levy, MD Robert A. Gunn, MD R. Keith Sikes, DVM Robert L. Haddock, DVM Mona Bomgaars, MD, MPH, Acting Charles D. Brokopp, DrPH Byron J. Francis, MD Charles L. Barrett, MD Laverne A. Wintermeyer, MD Donald E. Wilcox, MD Joseph W. Skaggs, DVM, Acting Charles T. Caraway, DVM Kathleen F. Gensheimer, MD, Acting Ebenezer Israel, MD Nicholas J. Fiumara, MD Norman S. Hayner, MD Eliuel K. Pretrick, MD, MPH Andrew G. Dean, MD Durward L. Blakey, MD H. Denny Donnell, Jr., MD John S. Anderson, MD, Acting Paul A. Stoesz, MD John H. Carr, MD, Acting John M. Horan, MD William E. Parkin, DVM Jonathan M. Mann, MD Richard Rothenberg, MD Stephen M. Friedman, MD Martin P. Hines, DVM Kenneth Mosser Jose T. Villagomez, MO Thomas J. Halpin, MD Mark A. Roberts, PhD John A. Googins, MD Anthony H. Polloi, MO, Acting Ernest J. Witte, VMD Antonio Hernandez, MD Gerald A. Faich, MD Richard L. Parker, DVM Kenneth A. Senger Robert H. Hutcheson, Jr., MD Charles R. Webb, Jr., MD Richard E. Johns, Jr., MD Richard L. Vogt, MD Grayson B. Miller, Jr., MD John N. Lewis, MD Jack Allard, PhD* Loretta E. Haddy, MS Jeffrey P. Davis, MD Lawrence J. Cohen, MD, Acting

State Laboratory Director

James L. Holston, Jr., DrPH Harry J. Colvin, PhD Jon M. Counts, DrPH Robert T. Howell, DrPH John M. Heslep, PhD C. D. McGuire, PhD Jesse Tucker, PhD Mahadeo P. Verma, PhD James B. Thomas, PhD Eldert C. Hartwig, Jr., ScD, Ac Frank M. Rumph, MD Luis P. Flores Albert I. Oda D. W. Brock, DrPH Harry C. Bostick, Acting T. L. Eddleman, Acting W. J. Hausler, Jr. PhD Roger H. Carlson, PhD B. F. Brown, MD Henry Bradford, PhD Dr. Philip W. Haines, Acting J. Mehsen Joseph, PhD George F. Grady, MD George R. Anderson, DVM

C. Dwayne Morse, DrPH R. H. Andrews, MS Elmer Spurrier, DrPH Douglas Abbott, PhD John Blosser George Reynolds, MD Robert A. Miliner, DrPH Bernard F. Taylor, PhD Dr. Loris Hughes David O. Carpenter, MD Bernard Davidow, PhD Mildred A. Kerbaugh A. K. Gustafson

Gary D. Davidson, DrPH Garry McKee, PhD

Vern Pidcoe, DrPH Jose L. Villamil Raymond G. Lundgren, PhD Arthur F. DiSalvo, MD A. Richard Melton, DrPH Michael W. Kimberly, DrPH Charles E. Sweet, DrPH Francis M. Urry, PhD Dymitry Pomar, DVM Frank W. Lambert, Jr., DrPH Norbert Mantor, PhD Jack Allard, PhD* John W. Brough, DrPH Ronald Laessig, PhD, Acting Donald T. Lee, PhD